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April 23, 2010
EA 09-305
EA 10-043

David W. Dobbs, P.E.
City Engineer
City of Great Falls
Public Works Department
P.O. Box 5021
Great Falls, Montana 59403

SUBJECT: RESPONSE TO DISPUTED NOTICE OF VIOLATION AND NRC INSPECTION
REPORT 030-08794/09-01, AND REVISED NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Dear Mr. Dobbs:

This is in response to your letter dated January 26, 2010, in which you denied a violation of
NRC requirements documented as a Severity Level IV violation in the Notice of Violation
(Notice) associated with NRC Inspection Report 030-08794/09-001, dated December 23, 2009.
The violation cited in the Notice concerned the City of Great Falls, Public Works Department’s
failure to conduct periodic reviews of the radiation protection program from 2004 to 2009.

During the October 27, 2009, inspection, the inspector received information, based on
interviews with Mr. Richard Johnson of your staff, that no periodic reviews had been conducted
since the last NRC inspection in 2004. Consequently, on December 23, 2009, the NRC issued
a Notice that included a violation for the failure to perform required periodic reviews of the
radiation protection program.

In your letter dated January 26, 2010, you informed the NRC that the radiation safety officer
periodically audits the radiation safety program, but that no record had been maintained. The
NRC acknowledged receipt of the new information in a letter dated March 4, 2010, and informed
you that the NRC would advise you when we had completed our review of the new information.

The NRC’s Enforcement Policy provides for recognizing violations of minor safety or
environmental concern as minor violations, not subject to enforcement actions. The failure to
maintain written documentation of periodic reviews that you conducted on at least an annual
basis is considered a minor violation. Violations of this nature, such as documenting audits and
reviews pursuant to 10 CFR 20.2102, are identified to the licensee during an inspection so that
appropriate corrective actions can be taken, but typically are not cited in an inspection report.



City of Great Falls -2-
Public Works Department

Based on the new information provided in your January 26, 2010, letter, the NRC has concluded
that the violation for the failure to periodically review the radiation safety program cited in the
December 21, 2009, Notice did not occur. Therefore, the violation of 10CRF 20.1101(c) has
been withdrawn. Our records will be amended to reflect this change.

For the other violations identified in the Notice, we have reviewed your letter and found it
responsive to the concerns raised in our Notice. We will review the implementation of your
corrective actions for these violations during a future inspection to determine that full
compliance has been achieved and will be maintained.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter will be
made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC’s Public Document Room or from
the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC’s web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html.

Sincerely,

/RA/

Kriss M. Kennedy, Acting Director
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety

Docket: 030-08794
License: 25-15247-01

Enclosure: Revised Notice of Violation

cc w/Enclosure:

Roy Kemp, Licensing Bureau Chief
Division of Quality Assurance
Department of Public Health and
Human Services

2401 Colonial Drive

P.O. Box 202953

Helena, MT 59620-2953
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REVISED NOTICE OF VIOLATION

City of Great Falls Docket: 030-08794
Public Works Department License: 25-15247-01
Great Falls, Montana EA-10-043; EA-09-305

During an NRC inspection conducted on October 27, 2009, five violations of NRC requirements
were identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the violations are listed below:

A

10 CFR 30.3(a) requires, in part, that no person shall possess byproduct material except
as authorized in a specific license.

Byproduct material is defined, in part, in 10 CFR 30.4 as any discrete source of
radium-226 that is produced, extracted, or converted after extraction, before, on, or after
August 8, 2005, for use for a commercial, medical, or research activity.

Contrary to the above, from May 30, 2008, through October 27, 2009, the licensee
possessed byproduct material not authorized in their specific NRC Materials License.
Specifically, the licensee possessed 4.5 millicuries of radium-226 in the form of a
discrete source in a Seaman Nuclear portable gauge after the waiver period for license
amendment submittal had expired for the State of Montana.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

License condition 22 of NRC Materials License 25-27594-01, Amendment 14, states, in
part, that the licensee shall conduct its program in accordance with the statements,
representations, and procedures contained in the documents, including any enclosures
in the facsimile dated September 21, 2004.

The September 21, 2004, facsimile states, in part, that the licensee will follow the
revised Appendix H, "Operating, Emergency, and Security Procedures" of NUREG-
1556, Volume 1, revision 1.

The revised Appendix H, "Operating, Emergency, and Security Procedures" of NUREG-
1556, Volume 1, revision 1, states, in part, that the licensee will sign out the portable
gauge in a log book (that remains at the storage location) including the date(s) of use,
name(s) of the authorized users who will be responsible for the portable gauge, and the
temporary job site(s) where the portable gauge will be used.

Contrary to the above, on October 27, 2009, the licensee failed to sign out the portable
gauge in a log book (that remains at the storage location) including the date(s) of use,
name(s) of the authorized users who were to be responsible for the portable gauge, and
the temporary job site(s) where the portable gauge was to be used. Specifically, the
licensee used Troxler portable gauges containing 8 mCi of cesium-137 and 40 mCi of
americium-241, at temporary job sites without using a log book to sign out the gauge for
that day of use.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

Enclosure



10 CFR 71.5(a) requires, in part, that each licensee who transports licensed material
outside of the site of usage, as specified in the NRC license, or where transport is on
public highways, shall comply with the applicable requirements of the Department of
Transportation (DOT) regulations in 49 CFR Parts 107, 171-180, and 390-397.

1.

49 CFR 172.200(a) requires, in part, that each person who offers a hazardous
material for transportation shall describe the hazardous material on the shipping
paper in the manner required by this subpart. Pursuant to 49 CFR 172.101,
radioactive material is classified as hazardous material.

a.)

49 CFR 172.202(a)(1) requires, in part, that the shipping description of a
hazardous material on the shipping paper must include the identification
number prescribed for the material as shown in Column (4) of the 49 CFR
172.101 table.

Column (4) of the 49 CFR 172.101 table states, in part, that hazardous
material described as radioactive material, Type A package, special form
non fissile or fissile-excepted include the identification number UN3332.

Contrary to the above, on October 27, 2009, the licensee offered a
hazardous material for transportation and failed to describe the
hazardous material on the shipping paper in the manner required by this
subpart. Specifically, the shipping paper that accompanied the shipment
did not include the correct identification number, UN3332.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement V)

49 CFR 172.202(d)(5) requires, in part, that the shipping description of a
hazardous material on the shipping paper must include the transport
index assigned to each package in the shipment bearing RADIOACTIVE
YELLOW-II or RADIOACTIVE YELLOW-III labels.

Contrary to the above, on October 27, 2009, the licensee offered a
hazardous material for transportation and failed to describe the
hazardous material on the shipping paper in the manner required by this
subpart. Specifically, the shipping paper that accompanied the shipment
did not include the correct transportation index. The shipping paper used
a transportation index of 0.1 instead of 0.6.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement V).
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2. 49 CFR 172.310 requires, in part, that each package containing Class 7
(radioactive) materials must be marked as follows: Each industrial, Type A,
package must be legibly and durably marked on the outside of the packaging, in
letters at least 13 mm (0.5 in) high, with the words “TYPE A.”

Contrary to the above, on October 27, 2009, the licensee transported outside the
confines of its facilities licensed material in a Type A package which was not
marked "Type A.” Specifically, the licensee transported a Troxler moisture
density gauge containing 8 mCi of cesium-137 and 40 mCi of americium-241 in a
package that did not have the required marking.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement V).

The NRC has concluded that information regarding the reason for the violations, the corrective
actions taken and planned to correct the violations and prevent recurrence is already
adequately addressed on the docket in your letter dated January 26, 2010. Therefore, you are
not required to respond to this letter unless the description herein does not accurately reflect
your corrective actions or your position. In that case, or if you choose to provide additional
information, clearly mark your response as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation; EA-09-305,” and
send it to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk,
Washington, DC 20555-0001 with a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region IV.

If you choose to respond, your response will be made available electronically for public
inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS),
accessible from the NRC’s Web site at www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/pdr.html or
www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. Therefore, to the extent possible, the response should
not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made
available to the public without redaction.

In accordance with 10 CFR 19.11, you may be required to post this Notice within two working
days.

Dated this 23 day of April 2010
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